

ICR-BMS-COP-POL-003

Doc. Author	Hollie Lawson Corporate Development Director	Doc. Approver	Alan McQuade Group Managing Director	Doc. Owner	Hollie Lawson Corporate Development Director
Date	29/09/2021	Date	21/09/2021	Date	29/09/2021
Signature	Alh	Signature	Alan McAuade	Signature	Alm

INTEGRATED MAINTENANCE & INTEGRITY SOLUTIONS



DISTRIBUTION LISTING

Master (Signed Copy)		Document Owner		
Master (Electronic Copy)		Document Owner		
Controlled Copy Distribution				
Copy No.	Document Holder	r	Copy No.	Document Holder
001	ICR BMS		006	
002			007	
003			008	
004			009	
005			010	

REVISION CONTROL

Revision	Description of Change	Date
00	New ICR BMS Document	01/11/2017
01	Updated template & signatories	15/09/2021
Choose an item.		Click or tap to enter a date.
Choose an item.		Click or tap to enter a date.
Choose an item.		Click or tap to enter a date.

CONTENTS

1	OVERVIEW	4
2	BASIC STANDARDS OF CONDUCT	
3	COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS	7
4	BUSINESS INTEGRITY	7
4.1	PERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTREST 7	
4.2	OUTSIDE INTERESTS 7	
4.3	INSIDER DEALING 7	
4.4	PROTECTION AND USE OF COMPANY ASSETS 7	
4.5	PROCUREMENT 8	
4.6	ACCURATE BOOKS AND ACCOUNTS 8	
4.7	CONFIDENTIALITY 8	
4.8	COMPETITION 8	
4.9	EXPORT CONTROL 9	
4.10	CONSULTANTS, REPRESENTATIVES, LOBBYISTS & OTHER THIRD PARTIES 9	
4.11	EMPLOYEE SAFETY 9	
4.12	ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION 9	
4.13	MANAGING DIVERSITY & EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES 9	
4.14	ALCOHOL & SUBSTANCE ABUSE COMPLIANCE 9	
5	BRIBERY AND ETHICAL BUSINESS	9
5.1	BRIBERY 10	
5.2	COMPANY'S RESPONSIBILITIES 10	
5.3	CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS 10	
5.4	ENTERTAINMENT, CORPORATE HOSPITALITY AND GIFTS 11	
5.5	CONSEQUENCES OF COMMITTING BRIBERY & CORRUPTION 11	
6	VIOLATION TO THE CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT	11
6.1	VIOLATIONS REPORTING 11	
6.2	DISCIPLINE 12	
7	CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	2
APP	ENDIX 1 - LIST OF NOMINATED COMPLIANCE OFFICERS:	3
	ENDIX 2 – ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION GUIDANCE FOR EMPLOYEES (ICR-BMS-01-COP-)-008)	4

ICR.



1 OVERVIEW

This Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (the Code) applies to all operations of ICR. The Code gives directors, employees, consultants, customers, suppliers, joint venture partners, agents and distributors advice and sets out the minimum standards of conduct that ICR expect from those parties in their internal and external dealings with colleagues, customers and third parties.

ICR is committed to the highest standards of ethics in the conduct of its business. All ICR's policies and procedures are linked to this Code. You should comply with not only this Code but all other ICR policies and procedures. To the extent there is any conflict between this Code and other ICR policies, this Code should prevail.

We have a duty to our customers, suppliers, the community and to ourselves to ensure that the activities described in this Code are followed when going about our daily business. Our business practices will comply with both the spirit and the letter of the law. Illegal or unethical business practices have no place in ICR.

This Code applies to everyone employed by, or performing services for or on behalf of, the ICR Group anywhere in the world in any capacity ("Employee"), including agents, intermediaries and business partners. The rules and guidelines contained in this Code are the boundaries within which every Employee of the ICR Group must operate every day. The Code does not exempt anyone. Those who supervise others have additional responsibilities under this Code. They must lead by example and give those who report to them the necessary resources and support to understand and follow this Code's requirements.

If after reading this Code, you have any questions or queries about its application to your work or circumstances, you should speak to your line manager, a member of the Senior Leadership Team or nominated Compliance Officer. A list of nominated Compliance Officers can be found in Appendix 1 of this Code.

ICR will regard any breach of or failure to observe the provisions of this Code or any procedures implementing it as a serious misconduct which may result in disciplinary action, including termination of employment and, in addition, may be reported to the appropriate authorities.



WHAT is the Code of Conduct?	A set of Rules, Standards, and Expected Behaviours.
WHO is the Code of Conduct for?	Every employee, Director, or Officer in every ICR company and every Joint Venture company under ICR control must follow the Code of Conduct. Contractors or Consultants who are agents or are working on our behalf or in our name.
WHY do we need a Code of Conduct?	To describe the behaviour expected of our employees whilst acting as a guideline for ethical decision making and upholding our reputation.
WHAT does this mean?	You must take positive steps to enforce and comply with this Code. You must not breach this Code. If you have any questions regarding the topics covered by this Code you must ask your line manager or the nominated Compliance Officer these questions.

2 BASIC STANDARDS OF CONDUCT

- 1. Directors, Employees, consultants, customers, suppliers, joint venture partners, agents and distributors will avoid placing themselves in situations where they have a conflict of interest.
- 2. ICR will comply with all applicable legal and regulatory requirements wherever it operates.
- 3. ICR will protect all confidential information in its possession including the personal data of its employees, third party confidential information, and will respect the intellectual property rights of third parties.
- 4. ICR will not enter into any relationship or carry out any work which does not conform to competition/antitrust laws and will endeavour to promote free and fair competition throughout its global operations.
- 5. ICR will conform to all export control requirements when exporting equipment or services.
- 6. ICR is committed to the protection of its Employees and the general public through rigorous Health and Safety procedures.
- 7. ICR will minimise its environmental impact worldwide.
- 8. ICR will strive to promote a diverse working environment through respect for different cultures and applicable laws.
- 9. ICR will operate its business with integrity and responsibility and will be accountable, open and honest.
- 10. ICR will not bribe, pay money or give gifts or anything of value of any kind to government officials, groups or organisations or to any political official, individual, group or organisation to secure business or the chance of business or favourable treatment or to influence any act or decision or to induce any act or decision (including refraining from carrying out any act); nor to make any such payments to family members of any of the above.
- 11. ICR will not pay inflated agency commissions.
- 12. ICR will not discuss or disclose information about its tender or bid activity with or to any third party.
- 13. ICR will not discuss or disclose its pricing or other commercially sensitive business information with or to any third party.
- 14. ICR will not make payments in cash.
- 15. ICR will not pay money to criminals for protection.
- 16. ICR will not place its Employees in a position of risk in relation to any of the above.

ICR.



3 COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

ICR complies with the laws, rules, regulations, and export control laws and sanctions of the jurisdictions in which ICR operates and to co-operate with routine government and regulatory enquiries and investigations. If you are subject to any such enquiry, you should notify your line manager before responding. If you are in any doubt about the legality of any action or practice you should consult your line manager or nominated Compliance Officer immediately. This Code is designed to protect ICR and its Employees against the risk of falling foul of the legislation of the jurisdictions in which ICR operates. Breach of the laws, rules and regulations can have civil and criminal consequences.

4 BUSINESS INTEGRITY

4.1 PERSONAL CONFLICTS OF INTREST

You face a conflict of interest when your personal relationships, participation in external activities or interest in another venture influence or could be perceived to influence your decisions.

Your decisions must not be influenced by personal and private considerations. A conflict of interest can influence your decision-making, or be perceived to do so, and jeopardise your reputation and that of ICR. A failure to follow the requirements of this Code or any laws or regulations can result in disciplinary action, including termination of employment.

If you suspect a situation may give rise to a conflict of interest then you should seek guidance from your line manager or the nominated Compliance Officer.

In addition to the above, Employees must not seek gain for themselves or others through misuse of their position or company property.

4.2 OUTSIDE INTERESTS

Employees of ICR shall not have any employment, consulting, or other business relationship with a competitor, customer or supplier of ICR including any of its subsidiaries. Any exception to this practice requires the prior written approval of the nominated Compliance Officer. No Employee shall do business on behalf of ICR with a relative or personal partner unless prior written authorisation has been given by the nominated Compliance Officer.

4.3 INSIDER DEALING

Individuals who have access to confidential information are not permitted to use, share, or encourage others to use that information to deal in price affected securities in relation to that information or for any other purpose other than in the proper performance of their employment, office or position. All non-public information about the Company and its business relationships should be considered confidential information. To use non-public information for personal financial benefit or to "tip" others who might make an investment decision on the basis of this information is not only unethical but also illegal. If you have any questions, please discuss with your line manager.

4.4 PROTECTION AND USE OF COMPANY ASSETS

The Company's physical assets, intellectual property rights and information must be handled with care to avoid loss, theft or damage. Company assets are intended for use for business purposes only. Limited personal use is permitted provided it is not in conflict with the interests of the Company, this Code or the Company's rules, policies and procedures.

ICR regularly produce valuable business information referred to as "intellectual property". Intellectual property includes patents, copyrights, trademarks and service marks, other kinds of confidential business information like

sales, marketing or other corporate databases, marketing strategies and plans, research and technical data, business ideas, processes, proposals and strategies, new product development, software bought or developed by the Company and information used in trading activities including pricing, marketing, and customer strategies.

Unless required for the proper performance of your duties or at ICR's request, you must never disclose any of ICR's confidential intellectual property or other confidential information. This applies throughout your employment and continues after your employment ends. If you do need to share ICR's confidential information with someone outside of ICR, you must obtain your line manager's prior approval and check whether you should have the third party sign a confidentiality agreement prior to the disclosure.

Equally, you must not use or disclose the intellectual property or confidential information of others without their and ICR prior consent.

4.5 PROCUREMENT

Employees of ICR are prohibited from accepting from a supplier any payments, materials or services of value such as an inducement for award of a purchase order. ICR and its Employees must adhere to the same standards when purchasing material or services from others as when selling services to customers. Procurement staff and other personnel who may influence supplier selection and ongoing relationships with suppliers must be particularly careful to ensure that situations which may give rise to a conflict of interest do not arise. Any concerns must be raised with the nominated Compliance Officer at the earliest opportunity.

4.6 ACCURATE BOOKS AND ACCOUNTS

All payments, receipts and other transactions must be properly authorised and be accurately and completely recorded in the records of the business unit or department in accordance with ICR's accounting principles, policies and procedures.

ICR will maintain at all times accurate books and records, available for inspection, which properly and fairly document all financial transactions. ICR will not maintain off-the-books accounts. The books and records will also be subject to regular audits.

4.7 CONFIDENTIALITY

Employees of ICR are prohibited from disclosing to any outside party, except as specifically authorised in writing by the nominated Compliance Officer, any confidential business, financial, personnel or technical information, plans or data that they have acquired during their employment with ICR or any subsidiary companies. Upon termination of employment, the Employee is required to return any documents or files (electronically readable or otherwise) in their possession and may not copy, take or retain any documents containing information relating to ICR.

4.8 COMPETITION

ICR complies with all legislation regarding competition. Among the transactions and practices that are prohibited by law are agreements between competitors to:

Fix prices or rig bids; or

Allocate territories, markets or customers; or

Boycott certain customers or suppliers

Certain types of agreements between suppliers and their customers are also prohibited when they inhibit free and open competition. If an Employee is approached for the purposes of entering into a relationship for any of the above prohibited practices then they should inform the nominated Compliance Officer immediately.

ICR.

4.9 EXPORT CONTROL

ICR is committed to delivering a quality service to customers worldwide and in order to do this we may be required to export equipment or services to another country. Some types of equipment and some services may be subject to export controls. If an Employee has concerns regarding exporting certain equipment or services then they should contact the nominated Compliance Officer.

4.10 CONSULTANTS, REPRESENTATIVES, LOBBYISTS & OTHER THIRD PARTIES

Certain laws require disclosure of, and place limits on payments to, consultants, agents, representatives, lobbyists or other third parties in dealings with the government. Therefore, the use of any such third parties on behalf of ICR must receive the prior written approval of the nominated Compliance Officer.

4.11 EMPLOYEE SAFETY

All operations must be conducted with the highest regard for the health, safety and welfare of Employees and the protection of the general public. In these practices all Employees must comply with the letter and spirit of the health and safety legislation and regulations, both UK and international, and ICR's related policies and standards [In addition, refer to ICR's Group Health and Safety Policy (ICR-BMS-01-HSE-PLY-001)].

4.12 ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

ICR must conduct operations in all locations with the highest regard for the quality of the environment, including water, air and general land usage. [In addition, refer to ICR's Group Environmental Policy (ICR-BMS-01-HSE-PLY-002)].

4.13 MANAGING DIVERSITY & EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES

It is ICR's policy to promote a culturally diverse workforce and in an effort to support this ICR endorses and supports applicable laws in the treatment of all Employees and prospective Employees. ICR will recruit, select, train, promote, reward, transfer, discipline and release Employees, and take any and all other personnel actions without regard to race, marriage and civil partnership, religion or belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy and maternity, age, sex, sexual orientation or disability.

4.14 ALCOHOL & SUBSTANCE ABUSE COMPLIANCE

It is ICR's policy to observe all local and national laws regarding the use of alcohol and substances of abuse and to recognise its responsibilities towards misuse and addiction among its Employees.

5 BRIBERY AND ETHICAL BUSINESS

ICR prohibits bribery and corruption in any form whether direct or indirect with the business principles on which ICR operates based on a commitment to the fundamental values of integrity, transparency and accountability. ICR has a strict zero tolerance approach to bribery and corruption by anyone involved in its business. ICR's policy is that it is better not to do business at all than to do corrupt business. ICR will apply this policy in its dealings with all parties with whom it has business relationships.

If you become involved in any way with bribery you could face personal liability, including imprisonment and fines. ICR's position with regards to Bribery and Ethical Business is stated below and further information is available to Employees in the Anti-Bribery and Corruption Guidance for Employees (ICR-COM-PRC-001 Rev 2) detailed in Appendix 2.

ICR.



5.1 BRIBERY

ICR prohibits bribery in any form either as part of its operations or carried out by an Employee without ICR's knowledge. Bribery may involve public officials, but may also take place entirely between private enterprises or individuals.

ICR prohibits the promise, offer, request, gift, or acceptance of a bribe in any form, including "kickbacks", on any portion of a contract payment, or the use of other routes or channels to include or reward behaviour that is illegal, unethical, or a breach of duty.

ICR also prohibits an Employee from arranging or accepting a bribe or kickback from customers, agents, contractors, suppliers, third parties or employees of any such party or from government officials, for the Employee's benefit or that of the Employee's family, friends, associates or acquaintances.

5.2 COMPANY'S RESPONSIBILITIES

ICR will provide leadership, resources and active support for management's implementation of the Code.

The nominated Compliance Officer is responsible for ensuring that the Code is implemented consistently with clear lines of authority and will ensure, as far as possible, that all directors, managers, employees, consultants, customers, suppliers, agents and distributors demonstrate visible and active commitment to the implementation of the Code's business principles.

ICR is committed to working in partnership with contractors, sub-contractors and suppliers in developing antibribery practices. Any concerns or suggestions for improvement will be

acted on by the nominated Compliance Officer. Where possible we will look for a mutual developing of systems, provision and exchange of information about risks from bribery.

No Employee will suffer demotion, penalty, or other adverse consequences for refusing to pay bribes even if it may result in ICR losing business.

Recruitment, promotion, training, performance evaluation and recognition will also be reflected in ICR's commitment to this policy with all practices undertaken in a way that is fair and transparent.

5.3 CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

ICR will ensure that charitable contributions and sponsorships are not being used as a subterfuge for bribery. ICR will ensure that when making a charitable payment or sponsorship there is no potential conflict of interest that could affect a material transaction.

Charitable contributions are payments made for the benefit of society, for charitable, education, social welfare and similar causes. The payments are made without demand or expectation of business return.

Sponsorship is a transaction where the enterprise makes a payment, in cash or in kind, to associate its name with an activity or other organisation and receives in consideration for the sponsorship fee, rights and benefits such as the use of the sponsored organisation's name, advertising credits in media, events and publications, use of facilities and opportunities to promote its name, products and services. It is a business transaction and part of promotion and advertising.

ICR will disclose all its charitable contributions or sponsorships.

Approval of contributions must be made in writing by the nominated Compliance Officer with appropriate counter checks and reporting. Sponsorship should be approved and paid within the normal purchasing process. Sponsorships will not be made where they could influence a current bidding situation.

Charitable contributions and sponsorships are to be recorded accurately and regular reviews should be held by management to ensure payments fall within the Code and guidelines.

ICR-BMS-COP-POL-003 REV 01

10



5.4 ENTERTAINMENT, CORPORATE HOSPITALITY AND GIFTS

From time to time ICR may offer reasonable gifts and/or hospitality to clients. Gifts and/or hospitality should not be offered outside the terms on which ICR would normally conduct its business. Any gifts and/or hospitality taken must be of a nature and scale that is no greater than ICR is likely to offer in return. The offering or giving of any gifts and/or hospitality should be done openly and transparently and in line with ICR Group Expense Procedure ICR-BMS-01-FIN-PRO-002.

The fundamental principle is that it is not acceptable for Employees to give/receive Entertainment, Corporate Hospitality and Gifts from/to a third party unless they are modest. "Entertainment, Corporate Hospitality and Gifts" are defined as any form of entertainment, corporate hospitality, gift, personal award or favour while "modest" is recognised as low level, low frequency events, such as a moderate meal. This principle also applies to those working for ICR when engaged on one of our contracts and, where it relates to the project, would be expected to comply with our policy.

Any gifts and/or hospitality received from clients, suppliers, potential suppliers or others must be reasonable and accepted on the basis that they are without favour, inducement, reward or in any way connected with performance. The difference between legitimate gifts/hospitality and bribery lies in the intention with which the gifts/hospitality are provided, and that is something to be inferred from all the circumstances, including the relationship between the giver and recipient, their respective financial and social positions and the nature and value of the gift/hospitality. Any offers of gifts or hospitality for inducement or reward must be politely refused. Any hospitality taken must be of a nature and scale that is no greater than ICR is likely to offer in return.

Account must also be taken of cultural issues when giving or receiving gifts and/or hospitality so as to avoid causing offence or misunderstanding regarding the basis on which they are given or received.

Employees are also encouraged to consider collaboration with outside parties in more ethical ways, such as charity events, seminars and initiatives which strengthen relations with the communities in which we support.

5.5 CONSEQUENCES OF COMMITTING BRIBERY & CORRUPTION

Any Employee or director who has committed bribery or corruption should expect suitable disciplinary procedures which may include summary dismissal.

6 VIOLATION TO THE CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

Violations to the principles set forth in the Code shall be pursued by the Company promptly, and immediately, through suitable and adequate disciplinary measures, independent of any possible criminal relevance of the relevant behaviours and of the institution of criminal proceedings, when those behaviours also amount to a crime.

The Company, in order to safeguard its image and its resources, shall not have any relationship with any person/entity which does not intend to operate in strict compliance with the laws in force and/or which refuses to behave in compliance with the principles set forth in this Code and with the procedures and regulations contained in it.

6.1 VIOLATIONS REPORTING

Employees of ICR are expected to report known or suspected violations of conduct to the ICR nominated Compliance Officer. If an individual feels that they are not receiving an appropriate response, they may pursue a satisfactory answer through the next level of supervision. There will be no repercussions for any Employees who report suspected wrongdoing provided it is not done with malicious intent.



6.2 DISCIPLINE

Non-adherence to this Code of Business Ethics and Conduct can cause severe harm to ICR and its Employees. Failure to comply with these standards may result in disciplinary action by ICR, ranging from a verbal warning to dismissal. Violations may also result in civil and/or criminal penalties against ICR and/or the individuals involved.

7 CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

I have received a copy of the Company's Code of Business Ethics and Conduct (Code) and know I have an obligation as an individual to comply with this Code. I have also read and understood the policies referred to in this code, and located on the Company's SharePoint site. To the best of my knowledge, I am in compliance with this Code, as well as with other applicable regulations, laws, rules of conduct, and policies of the Company and I will support the Company's Code to the best of my ability.

Managers/Supervisors: I understand it is my responsibility to ensure that the Employees who report to me are familiar with this Code and related policies, and to the best of my ability are complying with the Company's Code and related regulations and policies.

I understand that if at any time I have any questions or concerns regarding our Company Code, I should consult with my line manager or the nominated Compliance Officer.

Employee Signature:	
Employee Name	
(print):	
Position:	
Department:	
Location:	
Date Copy of Company Code	
Received and Signed for:	



APPENDIX 1 - LIST OF NOMINATED COMPLIANCE OFFICERS:

ICR – Hollie Lawson – Commercial and Procurement Director Chemical Injection Utilities Limited – Alan Simpson - Business Manager Mechanical Onsite Services MOSS Limited – Darryl Dixon – General Manager North East Corrosion Engineers Limited – Ife Unigwe – Business Manager Quickflange – Steve Jennings – Head of Engineering & Technical / Business Manager Walker Technical Resources Limited - Ewan Robertson - Australia (P-T) & ROW Global Composites Director Sky-Futures Limited – Chris Blackford – Managing Director



APPENDIX 2 – ANTI-BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION GUIDANCE FOR EMPLOYEES (ICR-BMS-01-COP-GUD-008)

ICR-BMS-COP-POL-003 REV 01

INTEGRATED MAINTENANCE & INTEGRITY SOLUTIONS

Anti-Bribery and Corruption Guidance for Employees

ICR-BMS-01-COP-GUD-008

Doc. Author	J. Lee Commercial & Procurement Co-ordinator	Doc. Approver	H. Lawson Commercial & Procurement Director	Doc. Owner	J. Lee Commercial & Procurement Co-ordinator
Date	02.11.2017	Date	02.11.2017	Date	02.11.2017
Signature	ARec	Signature	Shlip	Signature	ARec



ICR-BMS-01-COP-GUD-008 REV 00

INTEGRATED MAINTENANCE & INTEGRITY SOLUTIONS



DISTRIBUTION LISTING

Master (Signed Copy) Document Owner					
Master (Electronic Copy)		Document Owner			
Controlled Copy Distribution					
Copy No.	Document Holder		Copy No.	Document Holder	
001	ICR BMS		006		
002	2		007		
003	03		008		
004			009		
005	005		010		

REVISION CONTROL

Revision	Description of Change	Date
0	New ICR BMS document – based on legacy document as follows	02.11.2017



CONTENTS

1.	INT	TRODUCTION	4
2.	BR	RIBES	4
2	.1	FORMS OF BRIBERY	4
3	.1	HOW TO SPOT BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION RISKS	5
3.	СН	ARITABLE/EDUCATIONAL DONATIONS	5
4.	GC	OVERNMENT OFFICIALS	6
5.	GI	FTS AND HOSPITALITY	7
6.	EN	IGAGING 3RD PARTIES	8
7.	WH	HAT TO DO IF YOU HAVE A QUERY OR CONCERN	9

ICR.

1. Introduction

This guidance procedure provides further information on ICR's Code of Business Ethics and Conduct Policy ((ICR-COM-POL-001) hereinafter referred to as "the Code") with regards to bribery and corruption. ICR's Group Policies and Procedures set out the minimum standards of conduct that ICR expect and this document serves to provide guidance to help ICR Employees make the right decisions.

Your commitment:

- ICR remains a principled business as a direct result of every single Employee conducting themselves with integrity.
- Every decision you make impacts those around you.
- You also need to know that you can rely on responsible and ethical decisions made by others:
- You, along with everyone else involved in ICR's business and operations, have a personal responsibility to adhere to these principles and policies and to conduct business legally, responsibly and ethically.

Your commitment regarding our policy:

- You have a responsibility to uphold the Code.
- ICR is committed to ensuring that our Employees are fully aware of the aspects of Anti-Bribery and Corruption and are engaged in complying with this guidance and adhering to the Code in order to minimise these risks.

2. Bribes

A bribe can be described as something offered or given to a person in a position of trust in order to influence that person's views or conduct.

A bribe includes a benefit given or received in any form, which may include:

- Cash
- Favours
- The provision of services
- Gifts, hospitality or entertainment

It is a criminal offence to offer, give or receive a bribe under UK law.

2.1 FORMS OF BRIBERY

No distinction is made between bribes and 'facilitation' payments which can be described as a small payment made to a low-level public official, which is not officially required, to enable or speed-up a process which it is the official's job to arrange.

'Kickbacks' are also prohibited by law. A kickback is a form of bribery where a percentage of the revenue from a contract or other financial reward is illicitly returned to the person awarding that contract or reward.



DO	DON'T
Ensure you understand your obligations under the Code and operate ethically and within the law (both UK and relevant individual country laws) at all times.	Solicit, accept, agree to receive, promise, offer or give bribes/kickbacks or make facilitation payments.
Remain alert to the risks of bribery and corruption, especially in those countries or business sectors with a higher perceived risk of corrupt practices.	Use other forms of giving or receiving as a substitute for a bribe – for example, charitable donations, gifts or hospitality.
Ensure any third party engaged on behalf of ICR understands our policy and agrees to comply with it.	Be persuaded by others to do something which you suspect might be illegal.
Seek advice if you are unsure about giving/receiving a gift or you are being asked to do something which makes you uncomfortable or you suspect to be illegal.	Ignore or fail to report any concerns you have about improper conduct or corruption activity. Don't 'look the other way'.
Report any concerns you have about improper conduct or corruption activity immediately.	

2.2 HOW TO SPOT BRIBERY AND CORRUPTION RISKS

Here are some common indicators of corruption (this list is by no means exhaustive):

- Abnormal cash payments.
- Pressure exerted for payments to be made urgently or ahead of schedule.
- Payments being made through a 3rd party country i.e. goods or services supplied to country A but payment is being made to a shell company in country B.
- Abnormally high commission percentage being paid to a particular agency. This may be split into 2 accounts for the same agent (often in different jurisdictions).
- Private meetings with public contractors/companies hoping to tender for contracts.
- Lavish gifts being given or received.
- Making unexpected or illogical decisions accepting projects or contracts.
- Agreeing contracts not favourable to the organisation either with terms or time period.
- Unexplained preference for certain contractors during tendering period.
- Avoidance of independent checks in tendering or contracting process.
- Raising barriers around specific key roles or departments in the tendering or contracting process.
- Bypassing normal tendering or contractors' procedure.
- Invoices being agreed in excess of contract without reasonable cause.
- Missing documents or records regarding meetings or decisions.
- Payment of, or making funds available for, unusual high-value expenses on behalf of others.

3. Charitable/Educational Donations

Bribes may take the form of charitable or educational sponsorships.

When making charitable/educational donations:

ICR.

- Donations must be given to a charitable organisation and not to an individual;
- Charitable contributions are only permitted to charities that are registered under the local company's laws;
- The recipient of the money and the purpose for which it is to be applied must be known.

Approvals for charitable donations must be made in writing to the Finance Director and details passed to nominated Compliance Officer for recording.

4. Government Officials

You should take extra care when dealing with government officials. Most countries in the world have made it an offence to bribe their own public officials; many have also made it an offence to bribe a foreign public official (including the UK).

For this purpose, a 'government official' is:

- An officer or employee of a government (e.g. civil servants, local government and the armed forces);
- An officer or employee of a public international organisation or any person acting in an official capacity for or on behalf of such an organisation (e.g. the United Nations, World Bank, European Commission etc);
- An employee of a business entity in which a governmental body has an ownership interest or over which a governmental body exercises a dominant influence (e.g. state-owned commercial enterprises);
- A political party/member of a political party/candidate for political office;
- Any person known or suspected to be a close family member/associate of any of the above.

DO	DON'T
Ensure you understand and abide by applicable laws relating to work with governments, especially special requirements associated with government contracts and transactions.	Use agents or other 3 rd parties to do anything indirectly on behalf of ICR which you would not be permitted to do yourself.
Ensure you consider and comply with ICR policy and procedures when working with government, especially the bribery and facilitation payment rules.	Attempt to induce a local or government official to do something illegal.
Ensure that any 3 rd party engaged on behalf of ICR understands our policy and agrees to comply with it.	Ignore or fail to report any concerns you have about improper conduct/corruption activity. Don't 'look the other way'.
Be truthful and accurate when dealing with government officials and agencies.	Mislead any government official.
Seek advice if you are unsure about what to do when working with government officials.	Conceal, alter or destroy documents, information or records which are the subject of an official investigation.

If asked to assist with a government or regulatory agency enquiry you should seek advice before responding.



Report any concerns you have about improper conduct or corruption activity immediately.	
Co-operate courteously with officials conducting government or regulatory enquiries or investigations.	

5. Gifts and Hospitality

The occasional acceptance or offer of modest gifts and hospitality may be a legitimate contribution to good business relationships. There may be times when refusing to accept gifts or hospitality from a business partner or declining to provide them would be considered discourteous; notwithstanding this, compliance with ICR's Code of Business Ethics and Conduct policy overrides any such other considerations.

STRICTLY PROHIBITED:

- Solicitation of gifts/hospitality
- Giving or accepting cash gifts
- Giving or offering gifts/specific personal hospitality to government officials

Although the acceptance or giving of gifts/hospitality from business partners or potential partners is generally discouraged, the following may be accepted/given without prior approval (if you are sure you are not breaking any local laws):

- Corporate gifts of low value which feature the logo of the donor (stationary, umbrellas, calendars etc)
- Modest gifts during the festive seasons of the year (as a guide, not exceeding £50).
- Meals and entertainment (as a guide, not exceeding £100 per person).
- Occasional invitations to corporate hospitality events (as a guide, not exceeding £100 in value per person per event) and not extending over a period of more than one day. ('Occasional' means not more than twice a year with the same business partner).

You need to exercise special precaution when providing gifts/hospitality to current or prospective business partners where these individuals have discretion over the allocation of work.

ICR employees should consider the following questions before accepting/offering gifts/hospitality:

- Could my acceptance or offer lead to an obligation or imply an obligation?
- Is this gift or hospitality a 'sweetener' connected to the award or retention of business?
- Is this gift or hospitality a 'reward' for the award or retention of business or other business advantage?
- Does this gift or hospitality seem excessive in value?
- Am I in danger of breaching any applicable laws/regulations?
- Are there any potential adverse reputational implications in this type of gift/hospitality? Would my colleagues be unhappy to see ICR reported in the press in connection with this gift or hospitality event?



If the answer to any of these questions is 'yes' the gift or hospitality should not be given or accepted. If you are unsure how to answer any of these questions you should seek advice.

DO	DON'T
	Give or accept the following:
Offer gifts/hospitality only in compliance with ICR policy and applicable laws.	 Gifts/hospitality which you know or suspect to be illegal Cash or cash equivalents Personal services (provided personally rather than in a business context) Loans Travel/accommodation costs for family members
Take into consideration the policy of the recipient's organisation.	Give/accept gifts or hospitality during periods when important decisions regarding the award or retention of business or a business advantage are being made with the business partner.
Consider local customs for the giving/receiving of gifts and hospitality (subject to compliance with the Code).	Be embarrassed to decline any offer by referring to this policy. This will be understood by the business counterpart who, in most cases, will be subject to similar rules.
Communicate details of ICR's policy on gifts/hospitality at the beginning of every new business relationship (where appropriate).	Give or receive gifts or entertainment which you would feel uncomfortable explaining to your work colleagues, family or media.
Make the criteria for inviting guests to hospitality events clear and internally transparent. Consider extending the invitation to the most senior people in the target organisation and respect their decision to send whoever they want.	Differentiate between the giving and receiving of gifts/hospitality directly or via an intermediary.
Seek advice if you are unsure about the giving/receiving of gifts and hospitality.	Ignore or fail to report any concerns you have about improper conduct. Don't 'look the other way'.
Report any concerns you have about improper conduct or corruption activity immediately.	

6. Engaging 3rd Parties

The following principles must be applied when engaging a 3rd party on behalf of ICR:

- Payments must be reasonable and rationally reflect the value of the services to be provided by the 3rd party;
- The 3rd party should have a proven track record in the business discipline and geographical location concerned;
- The 3rd party should not be referred by government officials or have any known political affiliations;



• The services to be rendered by the 3rd party must be legitimate and the nature of the services as well as the price must be described in a written contract containing undertakings from the 3rd party that they will not engage in corrupt activity;

DO	DON'T
Engage 3 rd parties in good faith and with awareness of the associated risks.	Use 3 rd parties to do anything indirectly on behalf of ICR which you would not be permitted to do yourself.
Undertake due diligence prior to engaging a 3 rd party.	Allow 3 rd parties to represent ICR or our customers in high-risk situations (e.g. in dealings with government officials) without proper supervision.
Manage the activities of 3 rd party relationships to ensure compliance with ICR policy and applicable laws.	Ignore or failure to report any concerns you have about improper conduct. Don't 'look the other way'.
Report any concerns you have about improper conduct or corruption activity immediately.	

7. What to Do if You Have a Query or Concern

It is important that you understand the provisions of the Code. Breaches of these provisions, or of any laws, will have severe consequences for both the individuals concerned and ICR.

If you believe that there has been any breach, you have an obligation to report your concerns to someone who can deal with the situation – you must not ignore your concerns. You should report concerns to the nominated Compliance Officer.

Your concerns will be taken seriously and investigated quickly. If you wish, your anonymity will be protected. Furthermore, you can be absolutely sure that retaliation of any kind directed against anyone who reports an issue will not be tolerated.

Anyone who files a report with the intention of spreading falsehoods or to threaten any member of staff's reputation will be subject to disciplinary action.

If a breach of the policy or applicable law is proven, appropriate action will be taken. Employees may be subject to internal disciplinary action, including termination of employment. Breach of relevant laws could also result in criminal prosecution after referral to the appropriate authorities.

If you wish to discuss any queries or concerns in relation to ICR's policy and procedures or the applicable law, please contact ICR's Compliance Officer, Hollie Lawson.